NORTH LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCIL

PLANNING COMMITTEE

17 November 2021

PRESENT: - N Sherwood (Chairman)

C Ross (Vice Chairman), S Bainbridge, J Davison, M Grant, R Hannigan, D Southern and D Wells

J Reed, J Briggs, D Robinson, R Allcock, N Poole and J Longcake

The meeting was held at the Church Square House, High Street, Scunthorpe.

2148 **SUBSTITUTIONS**

There were no substitutions at the meeting.

2149 DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS AND PERSONAL OR PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS, SIGNIFICANT CONTACT WITH APPLICANTS, OBJECTORS OR THIRD PARTIES (LOBBYING) AND WHIPPING ARRANGEMENTS (IF ANY).

The following members declared a personal interest –

Councillor J Briggs Application: general

Nature of Interest: member of the Fire Authority and the Isle of Axholme

Water Management Board.

The following members declared that they had been lobbied –

Councillor J Davison

Application: PA/2021/1287

Councillor N Poole

Application: PA/2021/1210, PA/2021/1034 and PA/2021/1240

Councillor D Robinson Application: PA/2021/1033

2150 TO TAKE THE MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS HELD ON 20 OCTOBER 2021 AS A CORRECT RECORD AND AUTHORISE THE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN.

Resolved – That the minutes of the meeting held on 20 October 2021, having been printed and circulated amongst the members, be taken as read and correctly recorded and be signed by the Chairman.

2151 APPLICATIONS DEFERRED FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS FOR A SITE VISIT.

In accordance with the decisions at the previous meeting, members had

undertaken site visits on the morning of the meeting. The Group Manager – Development Management submitted reports and updated them orally.

2151i **PA/2021/223** OUTLINE **PLANNING PERMISSION** TO **ERECT** DWELLINGS. REVISE ACCESS TO HIGHWAY, AND DEMOLISH **DWELLING** AND STRUCTURE, WITH APPEARANCE. **EXISTING** LANDSCAPING, LAYOUT AND SCALE RESERVED FOR SUBSEQUENT CONSIDERATION AT 91 BARROW ROAD, BARTON UPON HUMBER, **DN18 6AE**

The agent addressed the committee and referred to the officers report that he felt was an accurate refelction on the application to recommend approval. He indicated that there was no objections from Highways, there was no heritage value on the land, and that the application would only provide gains all around.

Cllr K Vickers spoke as the local ward member as he was concerned about the loss of the archaeology heritage on the land, and felt that substantial harm would be caused to the historic heritage. He stated it was against a number of planning policies, and said the access was not acceptable and urged the committee to refuse the application.

Cllr Hannigan referred to the site visit, and the concerns with regard to archaeology, and stated that this was not to be underestimated, and felt that once the site was excavated there would be no assurance that the valuable remnants would not be lost forever. He stated a number of planning policies to which the application did not adhere, he said it was out of character, over development and the road safety was another issue.

Cllr Grant felt that the officers report and conditions covered everything required, and the Highways felt it was safe to proceed.

It was moved by Cllr Hannigan and seconded by Cllr Wellls –

That planning permission be refused for the following reasons –

1. The proposed development would result in a substantial level of harm to archaeology of national importance that is of demonstrably equivalent significance to a scheduled monument and thus should be considered subject to the policies for designated heritage assets. The lack of an appropriate mitigation strategy that makes adequate provision for excavation and recording before and during development and is capable of delivery, together with the lack of any justification for the substantial harm to the heritage asset, run contrary to paragraphs 190, 193, 194, 195 and 199 of the NPPF, and to policy CS6 of the Core Strategy and saved policies HE8 and HE9 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan.

The proposed development would constitute an overdevelopment of the application site and result in a cramped form of development at odds with the character and appearance of the surrounding area. The proposals are

therefore contrary to policies H5 and DS1 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan, and policies CS5 and CS7 of the Core Strategy.

The applicant has failed to demonstrate that the proposed access would not be to the detrimental safety of both existing and future users of the highway. The proposal would lead to residual cumulative impacts upon the existing road network and is contrary to policy T2 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan.

Motion Carried.

2151ii PA/2021/313 PLANNING PERMISSION FOR CONDENSED PUBLIC HOUSE WITH TAKEAWAY, NEW COMMERCIAL UNIT (USE CLASS E), TWO ADDITIONAL RESIDENTIAL UNITS WITH RETENTION OF EXISTING LANDLORD ACCOMMODATION, AND ASSOCIATED WORKS AT THE BAY HORSE, SHORE ROAD, GARTHORPE, DN17 4AD

Cllr Briggs spoke as the local Ward Member who was in support of the Public House, but had concerns about the low provision for parking on the site. He did not feel the flats were in keeping with the character of the village, and the access/egress to the site would cause problems. He felt it was over development and could not support the application in its current form.

Cllr J Davidson said the site visit had been very informative and the dilapidated old pub was a large waste of space. He felt the development would bring like back to the village and there was adequate parking.

Resolved – That planning permissions be granted in accordance with the recommendations contained within the officer's report.

2151iii PA/2021/855 OUTLINE PLANNING PERMISSION TO ERECT A DETACHED DWELLING WITH APPEARANCE, LANDSCAPING, LAYOUT AND SCALE RESERVED FOR SUBSEQUENT CONSIDERATION AT ORCHARD HOUSE, 12 BARNETBY LANE, ELSHAM, DN20 0RB

Resolved – That planning permission be granted in accordance with the recommendations contained within the officer's report.

2151iv PA/2021/1121 PLANNING PERMISSION TO VARY CONDITION 2 OF APPROVED APPLICATION PA/2020/874 (AMENDED DRAWINGS TO REFLECT AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED DWELLING) AT LAND SOUTH OF CHURCH STREET, ELSHAM, DN20 0RG

A neighbour who was objecting to the proposal addressed the committee with several concerns. These included, loss of privacy, overshadowing, out of keeping with the neighbouring cottages, it was an overbearing proposal and possibly two and a half times larger than an average house. He said their quality of life would be disrupted and urged the committee to refuse the application.

The agent referred to the site visit allowing the committee members to see

the full extent of the site itself. He indicated that the plot extended to over one acre, and there was many large properties within the same area. He stated it satisfied planning policies and the planning officer who had recommended to grant permission.

Cllr Hannigan stated it was a very large site and felt it could accommodate the proposal as it would fit on the plot, and would be the same height as the previous property.

Resolved – That planning permission be granted in accordance with the recommendations contained within the officer's report.

2152 MAJOR PLANNING APPLICATIONS.

The Group Manager – Development Management submitted a report containing details of major applications for determination by the committee, including summaries of policy context, representations arising from consultation and publicity and assessment of the applications.

2152i PA/2020/1483 PLANNING PERMISSION TO CONSTRUCT ADDITIONAL VEHICLE STORAGE AREA WITH ASSOCIATED ON-SITE INFRASTRUCTURE TO INCLUDE ACCESS BRIDGE AT CLOUGH LANE, KILLINGHOLME, DN40 3JP

Resolved – That planning permission be granted in accordance with the recommendations contained within the officer's report.

2152ii PA/2021/1210 APPLICATION FOR APPROVAL OF RESERVED MATTERS (ACCESS, APPEARANCE, LANDSCAPING, LAYOUT AND SCALE) PURSUANT TO OUTLINE PLANNING PERMISSION PA/2018/1716 DATED 06/02/2020 FOR UP TO 48 RESIDENTIAL DWELLINGS AT B1207 STATION ROAD. HIBALDSTOW

Speaking as a local Ward member Cllr Poole raising concerns around drainage issues, and felt that a full plan on the drainage and surface water should be drawn up before a decision is taken on the application.

Cllr Hannigan agreed that with the climate changing the committee needed full plans and assurance from the Drainage Team that the scheme is fit for purpose before a decision is taken.

Resolved – That the application be deferred in order for the drainage condition attached to outline planning permission PA/2018/1716 to be considered and discharged.

2153 PLANNING AND OTHER APPLICATIONS FOR DETERMINATION BY THE COMMITTEE.

The Group Manager – Development Management submitted a report incorporating a schedule containing details of applications for determination by the committee including summaries of policy context, representations arising from consultation and publicity and assessment of applications. The Head of Development Management updated the reports orally where appropriate. Other officers attending gave advice and answered members'

questions as requested.

2153i PA/2021/37 APPLICATION FOR PERMISSION IN PRINCIPLE TO ERECT UP TO THREE DWELLINGS (INCLUDING DEMOITION OF EXISTING GARAGES) AT THE BAY HORSE, SHORE ROAD, GARTHORPE, DN17 4AD

Cllr Briggs addressed the committee with some concerns as the local Ward Member. He stated that the residents also had concerns about the development and the affects it would have on the character of Garthorpe.

Cllr J Davison felt the proposal was a reasonable request on a derelict piece of land, and detailed matters would be considered at a later date.

Cllr Grant was against the proposals as he felt that the big field behind could be used as an infill plot, and parking issues would become a problem.

Resolved – That planning permission be granted in accordance with the recommendations contained within the officer's report.

2153ii PA/2021/391 PLANNING PERMISSION TO ERECT SINGLE-STOREY EXTENSIONS TO EXISTING DWELLING (DORMER STOREY TO ONE WING) AT THE GAME FARM, REAR OF 28 WEST END ROAD, EPWORTH, DN9 1LB

The agent informed the committee that the owners wanted to create a four bedroom home that would improve the character of the site, removing the dilapidated outbuildings that were currently there and in disrepair.

Cllr J Davison having looked at Google Maps stated he found it difficult to envisage what the development would like, and would like a site visit to take a look before making a decision.

It was then moved by Councillor J Davison and seconded by Councillor Grant

That the application be deferred to the next meeting to allow the committee to visit the site.

Motion Carried

2153iii PA/2021/479 OUTLINE PLANNING PERMISSION FOR RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT WITH ALL MATTERS RESERVED FOR SUBSEQUENT CONSIDERATION AT LAND OFF CHESSWICK CRESCENT, KEADBY, DN17 3DQ

Speaking to the committee the agent outlined the application and in doing so highlighted that the Parish Council was in support of the application, and there was also significant local support. He stated that it was best use of the land and very sustainable. The application had been reduced substantially from 13 to 5 dwellings in a residential area that would only benefit the area, and supply affordable housing.

Cllr J Davison referred to previous applications on the site that had been refused due to road access, and he felt nothing in the application hand changed on those grounds and therefore felt it should also be refused.

Cllr Grant said there was problems with access/egress and was also on a main bus route, therefore, the original reasons for refusal still stood.

Resolved – That planning permission be refused in accordance with reasons contained in the officer's report.

2153iv PA/2021/1006 PLANNING PERMISSION TO ERECT THREE SPECIALIST HOUSING UNITS AND A DETACHED SPECIALIST ACTIVITY SPACE, INCLUDING PARKING PROVISION AT LAND TO THE WEST OF THE TUDORS, MOOR ROAD, BOTTESFORD, DN17 2BS

Resolved – That planning permission be granted in accordance with the recommendations contained within the officer's report.

2153V PA/2021/1033 PLANNING PERMISSION FOR CHANGE OF USE OF GARAGE/OUTBUILDING TO RESTAURANT/CAFE (USE CLASS A3) [NOW CLASS E (COMMERCIAL, BUSINESS AND SERVICE)] AND ASSOCIATED WORKS AT GARAGE/OUTBUILDING AT 2 WESTGATE ROAD, WESTGATE, BELTON, DN9 1QG

An objector attended the meeting and spoke against the application. The site was situated on a narrow, hazardous road. Emergency services would be restricted and may encounter difficulties were they to access the site. The application would have a detrimental impact to the safety of all road users. Granting the application would add additional stress to the drainage infrastructure. There would only be three car parking spaces available, with potentially 12 cars requiring places to park. Noise from customers accessing the site would adversely impact the amenities of local residents. The village was unable to cope with businesses of this type.

The applicant responded and detailed for the committee his extensive career in hospitality and saw this as a semi-retirement project in a village setting. He indicated there would be limited opening hours, not a lot of deliveries to the site, it would mainly be based on afternoon tea and piano music playing in the background. He stated there would be 10 parking spaces available which wold be ample for the proposal.

Cllr Robinson addressed his concerns to the committee and felt it would breach planning regulations. He said it was situated on a corner plot where parking is an issue and it would cause more problems, along with daily school parking also in that vicinity.

Cllr J Davison having visited the site was concerned with it being on the corner of a congested area, along with the school being in close proximity to the proposal. He didn't feel the parking was adequate and there would be highway safety implications. He said it was contrary to a number of planning policies and was against approval of the application.

Cllr Grant Felt double yellow lines around the area could solve the parking issues, and there was other take always within the area so he could not see what the problem was as parking was provided.

Cllr Bainbridge supported the application as did the Parish Council.

It was moved by Cllr J Davison and seconded by Cllr Wells –

That planning permission be refused for the following reasons –

1.

By reason of the provision of a proposed parking arrangement, and the consequent potential impact resulting from on-street parking on Westgate Road, the proposal would cause highway safety impacts on this residential street. The proposed development is therefore contrary to policies T19 and S9(ii) of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan.

2.

The proposal would have an adverse impact on residential amenities and would therefore be contrary to policies S9(i) and DS4 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan which apply to proposals for restaurants, cafés and hot food takeaway establishments and changes of use in residential areas.

Motion Carried.

2153vi PA/2021/1110 PLANNING PERMISSION FOR A TEMPORARY CHANGE OF USE FOR THE STORAGE OF PREFABRICATED UNITS AT SLATE HOUSE FARM, REDBOURNE ROAD, HIBALDSTWO, DN20 9NN

Cllr Poole addressed the committee as the local ward member as he had concerns after reading the officer's report that there was no travel plan included, and queried it with the relevant officer present.

The Highway's representative informed the committee that the scale of the development did not warrant a travel plan.

Cllr Hannigan stated that he knew the site very well and felt it was suitable for the development.

Resolved – That planning permission be granted in accordance with the recommendations contained in the officer's report.

2153vii PA/2021/1197 PLANNING APPLICATION TO REMOVE CONDITIONS 3 AND 12 OF PA/2009/1081 TO ALLOW FOR THE UNRESTRICTED OCCUPANCY OF TWO COTTAGES AT HOLIDAY COTTAGES, DON FARM, COMMON MIDDLE ROAD, CROWLE, DN17 4EZ

The agent spoke on behalf of the applicant and informed the committee that the applicant no longer run the holiday cottages and a family member wished to use them as family homes, and requested that the condition restricting that be removed.

Cllr J Davison felt that the holiday lets had been the original reason why permission was granted, and there should be no reason to allow amendments.

Cllr Grant stated that had the application requested permission for a permanent family home in the initial application it would have been granted, and therefore he saw no reason why the application should not be granted permission.

It was moved by Cllr J Davison and seconded by Cllr Wells –

That planning permission be refused.

It was moved by Cllr Grant and seconded by Cllr Bainbridge as an amendment-

That planning permission be granted.

Amendment Lost Motion Lost

It was then moved as a further motion by Cllr N Sherwood that permission be granted and seconded by Cllr Ross –

That planning permission be granted.

Motion Carried.

2153viii PA/2021/1287 PLANNING PERMISSION TO RETAIN CHANGE OF USE OF GARAGE TO HOME HAIRDRESSING SALON AT 46 HIGH LEYS ROAD, BOTTESFORD, DN17 2QA

A neighbour spoke in objection to the application, outlining that the business was fully operational 6 days a week, with increased traffic flows, and could possibly be converted into anything they chose to do. He also said it could lead to them having to sell their property in the future as the opening hours to 7pm were unacceptable, with no privacy.

The applicant stated that due to family circumstances changing it meant someone had to be at home, but also had to earn a living. In speaking to the committee he referred to many other hairdressers working this way with no problems, and that he had consulted all the appropriate authorities and certified to the appropriate standards.

Cllr Longcake spoke as the local Ward Member on behalf of a number of local residents who had concerns. She was worried that standards had not been met, and potential parking issues along with the privacy of neighbouring properties.

Cllr Hannigan appreciated times had changed and businesses were now running from home, but did have concerns about the opening times

stipulated. He felt that that the application should be approved but with more suitable opening hours

Resolved – That planning permission be approved in accordance with the officer's report and the addition of the following condition:

1.

Hours of operation shall be limited to:

- 9am to 6pm Monday to Friday; and
- 9am to 1pm on Saturdays.

The hairdressing salon shall remain closed on Sundays and public/bank holidays.

No electrical equipment shall be operated or deliveries received outside the operating hours outlined above.

Reason

To regulate and control the use on the site, which is located in a residential area, to protect the amenity of neighbours in accordance with policy DS1 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan.

2154 APPLICATIONS FOR APPROVAL OF RESERVED MATTERS

The Group Manager – Development Management and Building Control submitted a report outlining applications for reserved matters.

2154i **PA/2021/1034** APPLICATION FOR APPROVAL OF RESERVED MATTERS (ACCESS, APPEARANCE, LANDSCAPING, LAYOUT AND SCALE) PURSUANT TO OUTLINE PLANNING PERMISSION PA/2017/392 **DATED FOR** FOUR-BEDROOMED 15/06/2018 SIX DETACHED DWELLINGS AND INTEGRAL GARAGES AT LAND NORTH OF THISTLE DOWNS, SCOTTER ROAD, MESSINGHAM, DN17 3QE

Speaking in objection to the application a local resident felt that the proposal was not appropriate, would have a negative impact on the area, and had great concerns regarding the drainage and maintenance of a pipe that runs through the problems that would be problematic.

Cllr Poole spoke against the application with great concerns over the drainage and surface/foul water discharge. He indicated that they had had problems in this area previously with standing water and residents unable to flush their toilets. He urged the committee to defer the application until a full complete plan had been developed to manage the drainage and surface water discharge.

Cllr J Davison agreed with the last speaker and requested the application be deferred until they had sight of a full scheme for the surface and foul water discharge.

Resolved – That the application be deferred until more detailed informative is provided.

2154ii PA/2021/1240 APPLICATION FOR APPROVAL OF RESERVED MATTERS (ACCESS, APPEARANCE, LANDSCAPING, LAYOUT AND SCALE) PURSUANT TO OUTLINE PLANNING PERMISSION PA/2018/792 DATED 06/08/2018 FOR SIX DWELLINGS AT CARR LANE, REDBOURNE, DN21 4QZ

An objector raised a number of concerns on the applications and urged to committee to refuse the application. She raised a number of issues including no drainage scheme being available, flooding issues, traffic safety and the detrimental effect that it would have on the area.

The agent felt that all aspects had been addressed by the conditions. The drainage issues would be solved through soakaways as land was available, and highlighted that the access had been deemed appropriate by the highways Authority with no loss of amenity to neighbouring properties.

Cllr Poole as the local Ward member felt that there was a lack submission on the drainage implications, and queried how the committee could take a decision when they did not have sufficient details to do so. He urged the committee to defer the application for further detail.

Cllr J Davison indicated that Redbourne had had previous flooding issues, and any future scheme needs to be adequate and a professional opinion obtained. He said the full scheme needed to be produced before they could make a decision.

Resolved – That the application be deferred for further information to be obtained.

2155 ADOPTION OF WORLABY PARISH NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN

Resolved – That the Worlaby Parish Neighbourhood Plan be adopted and referred to Full Council for approval.

2156 ANY OTHER ITEMS, WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE URGENT, BY REASONS OF SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES, WHICH MUST BE SPECIFIED.

No further items to discuss.